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1. Name - N

“Historic Resources of Tron. County » M1ch1gan°\ Partial Inventory =-
historic  Historic and Architectural Resources

and/or common N/A

2. Location -

street & number : Various N/A not for pubiication

city, town Various N/A vicinityof  Congressional district 11

state Michigan code 026 county Iron . code (71

3. Classification ~

Category Ownership Status Present Use

. district ____ pubiic A occupied -A__ agriculture X museum

— building(s) - private X__ unoccupied X_ commercial X park

—_ structure X__both —— work in progress X__ educational X private residence

____site Public Acquisition Accessible X__ entertainment X religious

gb'ect — in process X yes: restricted ) X government ____ scientific

Multiple — being considered — yes: unrestricted . =0 __ industrial X transportation
Resources N/A —_no - military ___ other:

4. Owner of Property

name ~ Multiple owners
‘ street & number ‘N/A
. city, town N/A ' | N/Avicinity of state N/A

5. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Iron County Register of Deeds
street & number Iron County Courthouse
city, town Crystal Falls state Michigan

6. Representation in Existing Surveys

title Michigan State Survey Data has this property been determined eligible? ___yes X _no

date 1972-83 __ federal __X state __ county ___iocal

depository for survey records  Michigan History Division

"

city, town Lansing state Michigan




7. Description

Condition Check one Check one

A excellent X deteriorated ____unaitered X original site
X good. X tuins X_ altered —— moved date
X fair ____unexposed

Describe the present and original (if known) physical appearance

See attached continuation sheets.
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METHODOLOGY 1

Iron County resldents have long been Involved In the preservation of landmark structures. For many
years the Iron County Historical and Museum Society has been Involved In operating a county historical
museum at the site of the Casplan Mine complex which .Inciudes the mining bulidings from that operation and
other historic bulidings moved to the site. In additlon, In 1977, through the efforts of the hlstorlical
soclety and Individuals In the community, the Iron County Courthouse was listed In the Natlonal Reglster of
Historic Places, and a state historic site marker was placed at the site. In recent years several other
sites-~Including the Donald C. MacKIinnon House and Iron Inn In lron River, the Casplan Community Center and
I+alfan Soclety Duke of Abruzzl Hall In Casplan, the Larson Roadside Park In Crystal Falls Township, and the
0jibway Indlan village and burial ground site at Pentoga Park -~ have also been listed In the Michigan State
Reglister of Historlc Sltes.

lron County has a decade long history of Inventory work. 1In 1972 Phillp E. Metzger carried out an
Historic Site Inventory of Michlgan's Western Upper Peninsula as a cooperative project of the Michigan
History Division and the Unlversity of Michigan's School of Natural Resources. In the summer of 1977 Dr.
Charles K. Kyde, an expert In the history of technology on the faculty of Wanye State Universlity, performed
an Inventory of historic engineering and Industrial sites In the Upper Penlnsula under the ausplices of the
Historic Amerlcan Englineering Record. This Inventory, published by HAER In 1978, Includes mining facilitles
and two power plants, three depots, one bridge, and a water tower In lron County.

The Iron County Historical and Museum Soclety compliied in the 1970s a comprehenslive list of individual
sites and, to a limited extent, districts that had potentlal for natlonal, state, and local reglstration.
In 1975-76, con-currently with this effort, the Western Upper Peninsula Planning and Development Reglon
(WUPPDR) of Houghton, Michligan, undertook a reglon-wide windshleld survey which resulted In 1977 In a
published Historlc Preservation Pian. Thls survey covered ail of the six counties of the Western Upper
Peninsula of Michligan, Including lron County. The project's first stage In August, 1975, Involved a general
fleld survey of all settlement areas within the various countles. Areas found to have a hlgh concentratlion
of historic structures as well as iIndividual sites of high visual and architectural quatlty were slated for
further, more Intenslve survey worke. During the second phase of the survey, the WUPPDR staff Individually
rated buildings within the previously mentioned areas of concentration which, for example, might be the
entire older part of a city. Each buliding was Individually scored on a 75/25 basls: 75% of the potentlal
points belng awarded for the extent to which the bullding was In I+s original condition and 25% based on its
archltectural mer!t In the lron County context. Any district or individual site having a score hlgher than
50 was recommended as a candidate for historic designation. It should be pointed out that both groups, the
WUPPDR and the lron County Historical and Museum Soclety, cooperated with each other In undertaking the
above mentloned surveys in order to Insure comprehenslveness.

In the latter part of 1977, David K. Stewart, the staff person responsible for preparing the WUPPDR
Historlc Preservation Plan, took employment with the County of lron as its planning director. The histori-
cal soclety and pianning director agreed to collaborate on a multipie resource Natlonal Reglster nomination.
The Michlgan History Division assisted the porject with a FY-79 Natlonal Reglster Survey and Planning
grant.

As previously mentloned, a number of potentlial disitricts and sites had been Identifled both In the
County Historical Soclety Inventory and the WUPPDR Historlc Preservation Plan. The historical Soctety list
was primarily of Individual sites and had an emphasls on significance in the history and culture of the lron
County community. Archltecture, to a lesser extent, was also a conslderation. The WUPPDR Historic
Preservation Plan, while taking Into consideration history assocliated with events and persons, was, because
of Its large survey area, Iimited primarily to architectural significance. These two Inventorles were then
synthesized Into one Inventory for the purpose of fleld photography worke.



2
A fleld survey of all the sites and districts listed In elther the WUPPDR Plan or the historical soclety
list was done during the fall/winter of 1979 and spring/summer of 1980 by staff of the Jron County Planning
Commissjon and a consultant/historian working with the cooperation of the Iron County Historical and Museum
Soclety.

In January, 1980, a representative from the Michligan History Division, Kathryn Eckert, met with repre-
sentatives of the county historical society, Marcia and Harold Bernhardt, and the project Investigators,
Steven Karpliak and David Stewart, to review the photographs and cards from this fleld survey and the Infor-
mation the Bernhardts could provide as to the historic significance of each property In the county's past.

A tentative list of the propertlies to be nominated was developed. This included fourteen districts and
elghty-four properties. At this polnt, It was also determined that the project would need to be broken into
two phases: Phase I, Involving completion of t+he fleld survey work, Including notes and photographs, typling
up of the survey cards, and obtalning property owner Information, and Phase I, which would consist of
historic research, primarily by Steven Karplak and Marcia Bernhardt, regarding the background of the Indivi-
dual structures and districts. David K. Stewart would be responsible in Phase || for writing up architec-
tural descriptions and for the preparation of the multiple resource nomination for submission to the
Michigan History Divislon.

with the survey work deflned, David Stewart and Steven Karpliak wrapped up the work of recording and
locating the resources on cards and maps. Steven Karplak and Marclia Bernhardt then completed the basic
historic research on each site and district. When possible, the historians provided an exact or approximate
date of construction and the earliest known owner's name for each documented site. For most sites, the team
historians were able to provide Informatlion about notable people and events assoclated with the site. It is
significant to note that the research and reflnement of hlstoric Information continued +hrough the actual
drafting of the Natlonal Register nomination, In an effort to make the final document as factual and reflec~
tive an overview of lron County's past as possible.

From August, 1982, to August, 1983, the multiple resource nomination was extensively revised by the
Michigan History Division. The bulk of the work was done by Catharine J. Farley, an Intern from the
Historlc Preservation Program of Michigan State University, working under the supervision of Robert 0.
Christensen, the Natlonal Reglster Coordinator, and Kathryn Eckert, the Historjic Sites Research Unj+t
Supervlisor, Historic Preservation Coordinator for the Upper Peninsula Region, and Deputy State Historlic
Preservatlon Offlcer. The work done Included additional research on many sites, photography, and extenslive
revision of the text to make it fit+ the present-day National Reglister format and requlirements. Ms. Farley
spent several days In lron County In November, 1982, reviewing the propertles proposed for inclusion In the
nomination. A new assessment of all the properties was made and a number of them were deleted from the
nomination and several districts reduced in size because of losses of Integrity and because of a lack of
avallable historical documentatlon. An additlional on-site inspection and review of the bulk of the nominated
properties was made by Robert 0. Christensen In early October, 1983.

This nominatjon should not be conslidered to contaln the final list of National Register-eliglble
historic and architectural resources In Iron County. Additlonal churches, homes, and commercial,
Industrial, and public structures which may be eligible for the Register have not been included because they
have not yet been sufficliently documented. Other historically and architecturally slgnificant homes and
commercial and other structures were not nominated because they had lost Integrity due to insensitive
remodel Ing; these could be nominated In the future If restoration work Is carried out. Archaeological sites
were not Included because no archaeologlcal survey work was carrled out as part of the Inventory project.
Nor were the county's historic bridges inventoried at this time. Thus, we have every reason to expect that
addi+ional 1ron County sites will be nominated In future years.
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DESCRIPTION OF THE IRON COUNTY MULTIPLE RESOURCE AREA

Iron County Is a wllderness county of 13,000 people In the western Upper Penlinsula of Michlgan. First
surveyed In 1851 by Harvey Mellen, and set aslde from Marquette County In 1885, Iron County, roughly square—
shaped, contalns 749,440 acres or 1,171 square mlles, excluding surface water. The eastern, northern, and
western borders of lron County are section lines, whlle the southern border follows the Brule River, which
also serves as the boundary between Michlgan and Wisconsin.

Much of lron County consists of hilly terraln formed by glaclal deposlts which overlay lron ore depo-
sl+s In the Menominee range. Recesslonal and ground moralnes wlth gentle to moderate siopes are common.
Small lakes abound, especlally In the northern half of the county. Key hydrologlical features of the county
Include the Brule River valley In the south, the lron River valley In the west, and, In the east, the Paint
River basin, with the Hemlock River Its maln tributary, and the Michlgamme River basin, with the Deer and
+the Fence rivers Its malin tributarles. The Michligamme Rlver |Is utllized by the Wisconsin-Michigan Light and
Power Company, which operates two dams; the Michigamme Reservolr, created In the 1950s by the firm's Way
Dam, Is the largest body of water on the east side of the county. Dralning through the Menominee River
basin, all of the main rivers In lron County are In the Lake Michligan watershed, a factor Important for the
lumbering of white pine In the county In the late nlineteenth century.

{ron County's wilderness character is primarlily derived from Its vast areas of forested land. The
western third of the county Is part of the Ottawa Natlonal Forest, and large tracts of land in the northern
half of the county are owned by companies engaged In forest management practices. Agrlcultural concerns are
limited, due to the short growling season. Farms under cultivation are falrly small In number, and are con-
fined to the southern half of the county.

lron County |Is traversed from east to west by U.S. 2, whlch runs across the southern half of the
county, and from south to north by U.S. 141, which runs from Crystal Falls to the Keweenaw Penlnsula. Major
rallroad lines In the county are the Chlicago and Northwestern Rallroad, which runs from Florence, Wisconsin
" to Crystal Falls and Iron RIver, and the Chlcago, Milwaukee, St. Paul and Paclflc Rallroad, which runs north
from Crystal Falls to the Keweenaw Penlnsula.

Iron County has elght populated centers, seven of which are In the south, along or near U.S. 2. All
are small (the population of the county's largest settlement, Iron River, Is less than 2,500), and all share
the appearance of small towns, with commercial structures rarely more than two stories In height, and wlith
narrow, often tree~lined residential streets, contalning a large collection of early twentieth-century and a
smal ler sampling of late nineteenth-century houses, most of which are constructed of wood. The populated
centers may be physically divided Into the "east side" and "west side" communitles, a division which dates
back to the bitter dispute over the locatlon of the location of the county seat, and which Is manifested to
this day In a friendly rivalry between the east and west side communities.

The major communlty on the east side Is Crystal Falls, the victor In the seat-of-county-government
dispute. Situated on a high hil) on the west slde of the Palnt Rliver, and dominated visually by Its
Richardsonlan Romanesque county courthouse, Crystal Falls, with Its commerclal center, provldes employment,
goods, and services for the. other two east side communlities, Alpha and Amasa. SlIx miles southwest of
Crystal Falls, the Village of Alpha Is a mining settlement characterlized by Its unusually well planned
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street pattern, with residential streets radiating outward from the viiiage circle, and with Its three well
preserved civic bulidings clustered In a complex which faces the circle. Amasa, another mining settlement
sixteen miles north of Crystal Falls on the west bank of the Hemlock River, Is the only populated center in
the northern half of Iron County. |t Is distinguished by I+s business center, contalning a large collection
of late nineteenth~ and early twentieth-century, frame, commercial structures, most of which have bracketed
false fronts.

Elghteen miles west of Crystal Falls as the crow flles Is the City of Iron River. Located on the west
bank of a large, S-shaped curve in the lron River, the City of lron River Is the principal west side com-
munity, and Is immediately surrounded by a cluster of four smaller satelite settliements, which all trace
their beginnings to the opening of Iron mines In the area in the late nineteenth/early twentieth century.
For the most part mining actlivity centered along the iron River Valley: +to the southeast of Iron River are
the smaller cltles of Stambaugh, situated on a high hill on the east bank of the river, Caspian, on the
south bank of the river, and Gaastra, on the east bank of the river. The Incorporated IIimits of these
cities are adjacent to each other; all were connected to lron River by a street car iine from 1906 to 1921.
To the north of iron River, on a high biuff overlooking the valley, is the Village of Mineral Hills, con-
sisting of a cluster of unrelated mining locations. The Clity of lron River s the commercial and civic hub
of these west slde communities. While all, except the Village of Mineral Hills, have small business cen-
ters, all rely heavlly upon Iron River for goods and services.

In additlon to these elght populated centers, lron County contalns several "junctions” or road
crossings, such as Beechwood or Kelso Junction, both northwest of lron River. These are extremely small,
however, and contaln only a handful of structures, thereby emphaslizing the overall wilderness or rural
character of the county.
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8. Significance

Period Areas of Significance—Check and justify below

___prehistoric ____archeology-prehistoric _A__ community planning ___ landscape architecture_x__ religion

—_1400-1499 ____ archeology-historic X__ conservation — law — science

—1500-1599 agriculture —__ economics _X_ literature — sculpture

___1600-1699 _X__ architecture X__ education —__ military - _X_ social/

—_1700-1799 ____art —_ engineering . music humanitarian

X__1800-1899 _X__ commerce , exploration/settiement ___ philosophy — theater

X __ 1900- —____ communications A__industry X politics/government ____ transportation
: ___invention — other (specify)

Specific dates  1880s-present Builder/Architect See continuation sheets

Statement of Significance (in one paragraph)

See. continuation sheets.
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INTRODUCTORY HISTORICAL OVERVIEW OF IRON COUNTY

The land whlch became lron County was flirst surveyed In 1851 by Harvey Mellen. At that time, the area
was populated by a small number of indians, principally of the Menominee, Chippewa (L'Anse), and O] Ibway
tribes. Mellen reported an abundance of white pine In the vicinity and also noted sighting an outcrop of
ore ("a ledge of red granite") along the banks of the Iron Rlver (then known as the Maple River).
Excavation for this ore was delayed for thirty years, however, untlil| the area became accessible by rallroad,
and untl! economlc condlitions, with a growing demand for lron by Amerlican Industries In the late nlneteenth
century, were more favorable for development of mineral resources.

“iron ore prospectors began to venture Into the wilderness of the lron County area In 1875.
Exploratory work was confined to the river valleys, where the mantle of glaclal deposits was thin, and where
outcrops of ore were more frequent. Early known explorers were John Armstrong along the Paint Rlver on the
east slde of the county, and Donald C. MacKlinnon (later joined by hls brother Alexander) along the Maple
(1ron) River on the west side of the county. Both were successful In striking enough ore in 1880 to warrant
opening mines: the Crystal Falls Mine on the east side and the lron River (Rlverton) Mine on the west side.
These inltlal strikes brought a wave of prospectors to both river valleys, where addltlional mines were
rapidly developede lron ore mining qulckly established itself as the primary Industry leading to the deve~
lopment of the county. Eventually the county witnessed the opening of some seventy producing mines, with
the center of mining activity gradually shifting to the west side.

Historically of secondary importance to the Iron mining Industry, but also a major contributor to the
development of lron County, Is the lumbering industry. The Influx of lumbermen seeking to harvest dense
stands of white pine coincided with the commencement of mining activity In the area: logging first began In
the county In 1875 along the banks of the Michigamme River. All of Iron County's rivers, as part of the
Lake Michligan watershed, flow Into the Menominee Rlver, where, at the river's mouth, the Menominee River
Manufacturing Company--commonly known as the Boom Company--operated huge lumber mills capable of handling
over seven million board feet of pine annually. With such access to the Menominee lumber mills, lron
County's pine forests were soon belng cleared wholesale, with little thought of reseeding for future growth.

Unlike the lumbering Industry, the mining Industry was dependent on the rallroads to provide a means of
transporting ore to Lake Michigan communities for smelting. (A single attempt to smelt ore locally was made
In Iron River In 1884 by the lron River Furnace Company, but was soon abandoned due to lack of profit.) The
rallroads were thus vitally Important not only for the growth of mining but for the development of the
county In generale. |n both Crystal Falls and Iron River, early developers of mines were closely connected
with the Chicago and Northwestern Rallroad. George Runkel and S. D. Hollister, operators of the Palnt River
Mine In Crystal Falls, were affillated with the rallroad, and gave the company assurances that enough ore
awalted extraction in the Immediate vicinity to make a line from Florence, Wisconsin to Crystal Falls a
lucrative route. On the west side of the county, lron River ploneers R. L. Selden and his son, William H.
Selden, as well as Donald C. MacKinnon, were all assoclated with the Chicago and Northwestern Rallroad, and
were able to persuade the company to construct an additional fiine from Stager to lron River. With the
completion of both these lines In 1882, mining In Iron County began in earnest, and the settlements of
Crystal Falls and lron River rapldly expanded.
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Local government was flrst establlshed the same year, when Crystal Falls and lron Rlver townshlps were
created under the supervision of Marquette County. In September of 1885, after much local agltation, the
Marquette County Board of Supervisors agreed to set apart lands In southern Marquette County for the purpose
of creating a new county, fittingly named after I+s most Important natural resource. The same act which
provided for the creatlion of lron County also authorlized the establishment of Mastodon Township (from
Crystal Falls Township) and Bates Townshlp (from lron River Township). (Addi+ional Iron County townships
Include Stambaugh, set aslide from lron River Township in 1886, and Mansfield and Hematlte, both set aside
from Crystal Falls Township In 1891, when Dickinson County was created.) ’

At the time lron County was created, lron River (then the only Incorporated village In the area) was
designated the county seat. However, rivalry soon developed between the east (Crystal Falls) and the west
(lron River) as to where the county bulldings should be located and a four-year dispute ensued. Both sides
resorted to tricks to secure the county seat. Most Infamous Is the "theft" of the county records, clan-
destinely moved by east siders from lron River to Crystal Falls on a winter's night In 1887. The dispute
was resolved in April of 1889 when a county-wlde general election determined Crystal Falls to be the per-
manent county seat (due to the slightly greater voting power of the east side). The cornerstone of the
Richardsonian Romanesque county courthouse, desligned by J. C. Clancy of Antigo, Wisconsin, was lald the
following spring. Rivalry of a more friendly nature has persisted between the east and west sides of the
county since the great courthouse dispute.

Although the early growth of the county In general was rapid, the economic depression resulting from
the Panlc of 1893 was wldespread, and lasted untl! the turn of the century. Almost all of the mines In the
county closed (with the exception of the Mansfleld Mine In Mansfleld Township), and lumbering activities
were also curtalled. During the 1890s, many early settlers, finding themselves unemployed, turned to agrl-
culture for subsistance. The Iron County Agricultural Soclety and the Upper Peninsula Grange Assoclatlion
both promoted agricultural concerns in the county, such as the lron County Falr, begun In lron River In 1899
and held there to thls day. In the early twentieth century, these organlzations helped Initlate agri-
cultural extenslon programs: Iron In 1912 became the flirst county In the Upper Peninsula to acquire an
agricultural extenslon agent.

Beginning at the turn of the century, Iron County entered Its greatest perlod of sustained growth,
whlch lasted untll the Great Depression. Major mining companies, such as the M. A. Hanna Company and the
P Ickands-Mather Company, began to move Into the area, buylng out small, local companies and Independent pro-
ducers, and assuming new exploratory work. With this shift In the administration of minlng, the county's
mineral resources were fully explolited, resulting In a tremendous boom In the minling Industry: from 1900 to
1929, the Menominee Iron Range, of which the lron County deposits are a major portion, contributed between
ten and twenty percent of the lron ore produced In the United States during this same period. The lumbering
Industry, after entering Its second phase of harvesting, also fueled lron County's post=1900 growth.
Although the wholesale harvesting of virgin white pines was completed by 1898, at the turn of the century
the logging of hardwoods commenced, with transportation for these woods--whlich were too dense to be floated
on the rivers--provided by the small logging rallroads which Increasingly penetrated lron County's hardwood
forests.
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With the combined influence of prospering mining and lumbering Industries, the population of the county
Increased dramatically during this post-1900 periode The 1930 census recorded a county population of 20,806
(as compared with the 1890 census of 4,432), composed of settlers representing a wealth of ethnic
backgrounds, including Immigrants from lreland, |taly, Poland, Scandinavia, Scotland, Wales, and many other
countries. The number of population centers In the county also Increased at this time. New settlements,
all of which developed adjacent to operating mines, were platted, such as Alpha on the east side and Mineral
Hills, Caspian, and Gaastra on the west side. Additional plats were recorded In Crystal Falls, lron River,
and Stambaugh. Publlic bulldings were constructed, and, on the west side of the county, public transpor-
tation was Installed In the form of an electric street car line, which operated between 1906 and 1921, con-
necting the settlements of Iron River, Stambaugh, Casplan, and Gaastra. While concentrations of
natlonalitlies occurred In some population centers (as, for example, a predominence of Swedes in Beechwood,
or a majority of Italians In Caspian), most of the settlements attracted a diverse mixture of ethnlic groups,
each contributing varlious tradltions, mores, and religlons to create a particularly rich cultural herlitage

for the county as a whole.

Public schools bullt during this post-1900 period of growth are some of the flnest examples of
architect-designed bulldings in lron County, and Illustrate a deep local concern for publlc education and
educational facllitles. In lron River, the Central School (1904, 1910), designed by Milwaukee archlitects
VanRyn and DeGelleke, with Its Flemish gable ends, Is the premiere example of Dutch Colonlal Revival-style
architecture in Iron County. The Lincoln School (1916), also in lron River, Is a fine Neo~Classical
bullding by local architect David E. Anderson. Educational archltecture was most predominent In Stambaugh,
which by the 1920s could boast of an educational campus of three large school buildings plus a Carnegle

Library.

Iron County's early twentieth-century boom years ended abruptly with the arrival of the Great
Depression, which had a particularly harsh effect on the local economy. All mining ceased, and the lum-
bering Industry, In the process of implementing new conservation techniques, was unproductive. This left
thousands without work; the locally severe unemployment quallified Iron County for several "make work" pro-
Jects sponsored by varlous federal rellef administrations under the New Deal. The Cooks Run Trout Feeding
Station (1933~34) and the Pentoga Park Office and Bathhouse (1936) are two labor-intensive projects which
stand as visual reminders of federal efforts to combat high unemployment in lron County during the
Depression. Camp Gibbs, built in 1934, Is an extremely rare Intact example of a housing camp constructed
for workers employed by the Civilian Conservation Corps, another federal relief program.

World War 11, and the Insatiable demand for lIron by the war industries, brought about a brief revival
of mining In the area, thus ending the effects of the Great Depression. However, the end of the war
signalled the close of the great mining era In lron County. Only a very few mines continued to operate
until the 1960s and 1970s, with the Sherwood In Mineral HIills the last mine In the county to close, in 1979.

The lumbering Industry still plays a major role In the economy of Iron County. Since the 1930s, forest
conservation measures and better forest management, such as the selective harvesting of the vigorous second-
growth timber, have assured the Industry's continued vitality. Lumbering activitles are primarily confined
to the eastern half of the county; major employers are the American Can Company and the Kimberly-Clark

Corporation.
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These large lumbering operations on the east side of the county and the Ottawa Natlonal Forest on the
west side together continue to give Iron County a wilderness flavor, which Is augmented by I+s small present
population of 13,000 persons. (After an Inltial decliine at the end of the mining era, the population of the
county has remalned stable over the last fifteen years.) There Is a hligh level of awareness of the mining
and lumbering heritage of the county, remembered by the large number of older people who remaln from the
post=1900 boom years. Interest In local history Is also fanned by the lron County Historical Society, which
has an actlve and growing membership, and which encourages preservation of the architectural fabric of the
county. The listing of the lron County Courthouse In the Natlonal Reglster In 1975 has served as a beacon
for recent preservation activitles.
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HISTORICAL OVERVIEW OF CITY OF CRYSTAL FALLS

Although claims were filed on the property In southeastern Iron County along the Paint River, where
Crystal Falls is now located, as early as 1866, no attempts were made toward the establishment of a settie-
ment until early in the year 1880, when the Chicago and Northwestern Railroad reached the village of
Florence, Just south of lron County in Wisconsin. After receiving assurances from the railroad that any
ores mined would have a rail outiet from Florence, Dre D. M. Bond and Donald C. MacKinnon of lron River
began explorations and, in the late summer of 1880, opened the Paint River Mine. Two residents of Florence,
S. D. Hollister, Sr. and George Runkel, reached the location In September of 1880. Runkel began operation
of the Crystal Falls MIne, which was located on the western bank of the Paint River at the foot of the
Falls. Together with Hollister and several other early explorers, he formed the Crystal Falls lron
Company, to enlist capital, explore for ore, and obtain leases.

The Crystal Falls lron Company immediately established a sawmill, which, run by David Lockwood, brother—
in-law of George Runkel, became the center of settlement activity in the area. Other mines opened in rapid
succession in the Crystal Falls area, attracting a healthy supply of settlers. By 1881, enough ore had been
unearthed to warrant extension of the Chicago and Northwestern Rallroad from Florence, flfteen miles to the .
south, to Crystal Falls.

The Crystal Falls lron Company purchased and platted land along the railroad right-of-way on the side of
a hill rising from the Paint River. With the arrival of the first train in April of 1882, the growth of the
newly platted settlement was assured. According +o the Lake Superlor Mining Assoclation Directory, there
were seven mines in the Crystal Falls area shipping ore in the first year after the rallroad opened.
Collectively these mines employed more than 500 men. Crystal Falls was truly a mining settlement.

The town mushroomed to serve its mining population. Although Crystal Falls contained only four commer-
cial structures In the spring of 1882, by 1884 I+ boasted of some twenty-five business establishments,
Including three hotels, two drugstores, two dry-goods stores, one hardware store, one bakery, three grocery
stores, one restaurant, one barber shop, one Jeweler, two public halls, and several saloons.

] School District Number One was established in July of 1882 and the first school was constructed in 1883.
" However, the incorporation of the settlement as a village did not take place until 1889. In that same year
Crystal Falls was also made the county seat of lron County. The present county courthouse was built a year
later.

In spite of the quick growth of Crystal Falls, operations at the mines during the town's early years
were sporadic. For example, a strike of miners in 1883 brought about the temporary suspension of activi-
ties and, a year later, the depressed Iron market forced the closing of all mines but one. Lumbering, on
the other hand, provided a steady and constant means of employment. Logging operations in the Crystal Falls
area expanded rapidly and, by the time the village was incorporated, lumbering of the vast stands of pine In
the vicinity was carried on by crews from thirty camps.

The population of Crystal Falls grew to 3,231 by the 1890 census and the number of commerclal establlsh—
ments continued to grow. During its flrst year as a village, Crystal Falls had twenty-seven saloons doing a
busy trade with the clientele of miners and lumberjacks. The village itself constructed a hydro-electric-

power plant and water system in 1891,
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Crystal Falls was Incorporated as a city in 1899. Entering into the twentlieth century, the city con-
t+inued to prosper. Public services were expanded with the installation of street lights and a sewer system
in 1902. A city hall, Including a fire hall and assembly hall for entertalnment and recreational activi-
tles, was bullt In 1914. However, growth halted In the 1930s with the arrival of the Great Depression, when
most of the mines were closed.

Although the mining Industry in Crystal Falls briefly revived during World War {l, It has since
declined. Growth has been stabilized at a slow rate since the 1930s; Crystal Falls has become a qulet clty
that functions as the county seat and the center of the eastern half of lron County.
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HISTORICAL OVERVIEW OF CITY OF IRON RIVER

Serlous exploration for Iron ore along the Mapie River {soon known as the Iron Rlver) was begun In
March of 1880 by R« L. Selden and his son, Wiiliam H. Selden, who were following up on a surveyor's report
of an ore outcrop In the lIron River valley. After a perliod of about nine months, sufficlent ore was disco~
vered on property owned by the Seldens In Section 36, T43N, R3BW, to warrant the opening of the lron River
Mine, later known as the Riverton Mine. WIililam Selden soon persuaded the Chicago and Northwestern Rallroad
to extend Its line from Stager to Iron River, a distance of approximately fifteen miles. Anticipating an
Influx of miners to the area, the brothers Donaid C. and Alexander MacKinnon piatted a village on the west
bank of the Iron Rlver, on land they had purchased three years earller. This village, taking the name of
the river, was the first settlement platted on the west slde of what later became lron County.

The Chicago and Northwestern Ralliroad line to lron River was completed In the fail of 1882; after Its
completlion, settlers and prospectors flocked to the new village. Many of the early houses and stores In the
settlement were bullt of logs, as cut lumber had to be transported from Florence, Wisconsin. However, after
the raflroad arrived, the MacKinnon brothers erected a sawmill on the banks of the river.

Initial growth In the settliement was rapid. Iron Rlver was Incorporated as a viilage In 1885. In the
same year Marquette County consented to the secession of her western lands to form a new county and Iron
County was establlishede Iron River, the only Incorporated village In the county, was designated as the
county seat, a designation that was eventually lost, after a bitter dispute, to the Village of Crystal Falls
on the eastern side of the county.

Although Initial growth In the platted village Itself was rapid, a land dispute temporarily slowed
minlng and settlement In areas surrounding lron River. Growth was additionally retarded In the lron Rlver
area In the late nineteenth century by the Panlc of 1893. The effects of the Panlc are reflected In the
census figures of 1900, which Indicate a population increase of only 243 in lron River since 1890, From
1889 +o 1900, no ore was mined on the entlre west slde of Iron County. During this eleven-year period of
stagnation, resldents turned to logging as a means of employment, and to agriculture, which resuited In a
greater development of farms In the west of the county than In the east.

Commercial logging first began In western lron County In August of 1883, when William A« Holmes, Jr. of
Menominee arrlved In lron River, established a logging camp nearby and began the harvesting of pine timber
adjacent to the Iron River. Plne logs were floated down the lron River, a tributary of the Menominee Rlver,
by way of the Brule River, to the Menominee sawmllls. By the time the pine stands had been depleted, small
logging rallroads had penetrated parts of western lron County, allowing for the contlinued harvesting of the
abundant hardwood stands. The lumber Industry, not as susceptible to economic siumps as the mining
Industry, played a key role In the development of lron River In the late nlneteenth century.

The Importance of lron River as the agricultural center of lron County Is reflected in the fact that,
from its inception In 1899, the county falr has been held In lron River Instead of In Crystal Falls, the
county seat. Farming was promoted on the west side of the county by the Iron County Agricultural Soclety
and by the Upper Peninsula Grange Association, with iron River clitlzen |saac W. Byers serving as Its presi-
dent for several years. Byers, a leader In agricultural development, encouraged the growth of agricultural
extension programs in Iron County; these programs were especially strong In the west, or In the Iron River
area.
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With the arrival of the twentleth century, lron River and the surrounding vicinity entered its greatest
period of growth. The turn of the century saw a steady Increase In the consumption of pig iron by industry,
which boosted the demand for the soft, phosphoric ores found around lron River. Development of new mlnes
took place at a rapid pace after ore was for the first time discovered outside of the lron River Valley In
1905 at the James Mine, which later became Mineral Hills. In the years 1905 fo 1912, the number of produc-
t+ive mines In the area Increased from six to sixteen. Mining activity was reflected in the village of lron
River by the rapid expansion of housing and business establishments. The village responded to such growth
by installing a sewer system In 1905 and electric light facilities in 1908. The great demand for laborers
In the rapidly developing mines during the first decade of the twentleth century Is evidenced in the census
figures of 1910, which show a populaflon increase of 5,43 on the west side of the county, for a total of
7,816.

while lron River developed, other towns In the Immediate vicinlty also grew, as each mine had its own
"location" or settlement, which often became a distinct village. For example, lron River encompassed the
Beta and Nanalmo mines, and Stambaugh developed around the lIron River (Riverton) and Isabella mines. Also
clustered about Iron River were the smaller mining towns of Casplan and Gaastra to the southeast and Mineral
Hills to the north. This cluster of towns was united by public fransportation In 1913, when a street
ral lway franchise was granted to the Iron River and Crystal Falls Street Rallway Company. The installation
of a four-and-one~half-mile long line, which operated untlil 1922, indicates the prosperity of the area, and
the confidence In the future growth of mining.

lron River was Incorporated as a clty, with a conmlssion and manager form of government, In January of
1926. However, this was the tall end of the boom years. The Great Depression forced the closing of all
mines and, although some reopened at the beginning of World War 11, the mining Industry never again regalned
its earlier high level of production. With the general decline of mining after World War I}, lron River
settled down to become a quiet commercial and business center for western lron County. The city has changed
l1ttle over the past fifty years. Redevelopment has not occurred in lron River, and thus the small town
character and appearance of the city has been, for the most part, retalned.
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HISTORICAL. OVERVIEW OF CITY OF STAMBAUGH

In June of 1882, when the Iron River Mine had shown sufficient promise of producing large quantities of
ore, R. L. Selden and his son, Willtam H., along with partners Dr. Louis D. Cyr of Negaunee and Louis
Stegmiller, an Escanaba Jeweler, decided to plat a village on land east of t+he Iron River Mine, at +he top
of a hill overlooking the Iron River Valley. John V. Suydam was engaged to make the surveys, assisted by
Lafayette McQuown. The new viilage was named Stambaugh in honor of John Stambaugh, president of the Tod,
Stambaugh Company of Youngstown, Ohio, which had recently acquired rights to the iron River Mine. A
township taking the name of t+he new village was set aside from Iron River Township in 1887,

Initially, Stambaugh developed along Fourth Street, where the Tod, Stambaugh Company buflt a number of
frame houses to accommodate supervisory personnel. Growth of the community spread from Fourth Street out-
wards and, In 1890; Stambaugh was incorporated as a village. That same year; a water system was instal led
and a flre department was organized.

As with virtually all of the mining communities in Iron County, Stambaugh's growth was stunted during
the 1890s due to the Panic of 1893. At the turn of the century, Stambaugh, with a population numbering 695,
consisted of a collection of widely scattered buildings, most of which were frame dwellings bullt on foun=
dations of cedar posts. Most of the European nationaiities were represented in the community, with
Scandinavians making up the dominant ethnic background.

In the early twentieth century, with the stabilization of the economy and the operation of five mines in
Stambaugh, the village expanded rapidly: five addltions to the original plat were registered during the
decade beginning in 1907, Electricity was introduced to Stambaugh in 1908 by the Menominee Range Power and
Development Company; telephone lines had previously been installed in 1898 by the Michigan Bell Telephone
Company. A town hall was erected in 1913 while the village was the seat of government of Stambaugh
Township.

stambaugh has always been primarily residential in nature, with commercial development restricted due
to the community's close proximity to lron River's relatively large commercial center. A school was opened
in 1883, when there were for the first time enough children to begin holding classes. That the school
system showed only limited growth until t+he turn of the century again reflects the consequences of the
Panic; the uncertain operations of the mines during the 1890s forced some families to move onto homestead
lands and others to seek employment elsewhere. The school system grew steadily after 1900, however, and by
1930, when consolidation began, there were twelve schools in the township school district. By the 1920s,
Stambaugh itself boasted an educational campus of three large public school buildings and a Carnegle
Library.

in 1923, Stambaugh was incorporated as a city with a commission-manager form of government. Due to the
inclusion of valuable mining properties on the tax rolls, t+he clty has always been financially secure and
has provided many civic improvements, including well paved streets, adequate lighting, water, and sewer
systems, and a fine athletic fields In spite of the decline in western Iron County due to the closing of
It+s mines during the Depression (growth peaked in Stambaugh in 1930, when a population of 2,400 was
recorded), Stambaugh has remained a well kept residential community, with civic pride manifested in its uni-
formly neat and cared-for houses.
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HISTORICAL OVERVIEW OF VILLAGE OF MINERAL HILLS

In the early twentlieth century mining activity Increased dramatical iy In the Iron River area of
southern lron County, when the notlon that ore only existed In the Iron River Val ley was proven false,
Because the flrst ore In the area was discovered 1n outcrops In the val ley, the assumption that the ore was
conflned to this area had persisted for years. Extenslve excavatlon was required outside of the valley to
remove enough of the deep glaclal drift to reach the ore, This was reportedly first accanplished In 1905 by
the homesteader Wil ilam James, Some accounts clalm he was dlgging a well on hls property north of Iron
Rlver, and accldental iy struck ore 100 feet below the surface. Other accounts reveal he was Intentlonal ly
excavating for lron, In any event, the dlscovery of ore two miles north of Iron River unleashed a flurry of
mining actlvity In the area which later became Mineral Hllls, and helped to fuel the boaming econamy of the
entlre Iron Rlver settlement,

In 1906 the Mineral HIlls Minlng Company, whlch operated the Nanalmo and Beta mlnes In lron Rlver,
acquired the rights to the James Mlne, the flrst to produce marketable quantlities of ore in the Mineral
HilIs area, Mineral Hllls at that time consisted of a few Isolated farms. Due to the lack of accamodatlon
near the James Mine site, the Mineral Hllls Mining Company constructed ftwelve simple frame houses west of
the mine at what became the West James Location., As flve addltlonal mines opened In the area, Including the
Wauseca In 1910~1911, the Forbes In 1911=1912, the Virgll In 1912, the Homer 1n 1914, and the Sples In 1916,
the constructlion of housling by mining companles soon became a common practlice. Each cluster of approxima-
tely a dozen houses was known as a "location," Housing In the locations usual ly lacked basements or Indoor
plumbing of any kind: water was obtalned from a centrally located well In each location, and the structures
were heated by wood=burning stoves.

In 1919, all of the locatlons In the area collectiveiy became Incorporated as the Vil lage of Mineral
Hills. A vlllage hall was constructed In 1921, However, a buslness dlstrict never materlallzed and Mineral
HllIs has relled on nearby lron Rlver for 1ts goods and services, with vlllage services |imited to road
ma Intenance,

Mining contlnued In Mineral Hllls untll the 1960s, with the Wauseca the last mine to close In the
county, Although most of the vlllage Inhabltants foday work in nearby lron Rlver, Mineral Hllls 1s visually
I1ttle altered since the closing of the Wauseca Mine,
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HISTORICA. OVERVIEW OF CITY OF CASPIAN

The development of the settlement of Caspian is closely related to the expansion of the mining industry
on the west side of Iron County after the turn of the century, when the effects of the Panic of 1893 had
subsided. For the most part, exploration was concentrated in the Iron River Valley southeast of the settle-
ments of Iron River and Stambaugh. In the first decade of the twentieth century, five mines opened in the
area that was later incorporated as the Village of Casplan: the Baltic in 1900, the Caspian in 1903, +the
Youngs fn 1904, the Fogarty in 1907, and the Berkshire in 1908. A sixth mine, the Buck, opened in 1922.
The development of each new mine brought more miners to the area, where no previous housing existed. Thus,
the mining companies constructed houses for their employees, beginning in 1904. The practice of buflding
company housing continued in Casplan until 1929,

A small business center soon developed to serve the mining locatlons; in 1908 this consisted of two gro-
cery stores, two hotels, a livery stable, a saloon, a shoe maker's shop, and a post office established +hat
year. Two plats of forty—~acre tracts near this business center were registered, one in 1908 and a second,
by +he Caspian Realty Company; In 1909. The first plat was variously referred to as Palatka, Spring Valley,
or 0ld Casplan; and the second plat was known as New Caspian; however, by 1913 the entire settlement took
the name of Casplian, after the most productive mine in the area.

By 1917, the population of Caspian had reached 1,860. Agltation for the formation of a separate village
government resulted in Caspian being incorporated as a village in January of 1918. A variety of municipal
improvements was soon inaugurated,including the installation of a village water system In 1919, the construc-
tion of a village hall in 1923, and the completion of a village sewer system by 1926.

The ethnic background of Caspian has always been predominantly Italian: +the first settlers in the area
were the Fedrizzls and the Tessadris, and these were followed by a number of other Italian families. The
strength of the Italian cultural heritage is evidenced by the proportionately large fraternal order of the
Duca Degli Abruzzi, founded in 1909. However, a variety of other ethnic and cultural groups are represented
in +he community, inciuding Finns, Poles, and more than a dozen other nationalities. In spite of this broad
ethnic make-up; Caspian Is a cohesive settlement, whose citizens have developed a strong sense of community.
This has been encouraged in part by the thriving Caspian Community Center, organized in the late Teens and
still active today.

Ccasplan in its heydey, with six productive mines in operation, was a bustling mining village, connected
from 1915 to 1921 by street car lines with Iron River and Stambaugh to the northwest and Gaastra to the
southeast. Casplan was incorporated as a city with commission/manager form of government in 1949. As with
all of Iron County's west-side settlements, Caspian declined after the closing of the mines. Today i+ is a
quiet commun i+y, closely linked to Iron River for employment, goods, and services.
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HISTORICAL OVERVIEW OF VILLAGE OF ALPHA

The village of Alpha, located in southeastern lron County in Mastodon Township, began, like many other
commun I+1es in the coun+y; as a mining settlement. Although mining activity occurred in Mastodon Township
as early as 1882 with the opening of the Mastodon Mine several miles south of the site that became Alpha,
this and other early mining ventures were short-lived, not surviving the Panic of 1893. No attempt appears
+o have been made during the operation of the early mines to establish a real village. Instead, lodging for
+he miners was provided by boarding houses at the mine locations.

In 1910, however, the Pickands-Mather Company began large scale exploratory operations in the area,
which in turn brought an Influx of laborers. At this time, a settlement was platted north of the operations
by the Nevada Land Company. This was unusually well planned for a mining settlement, with streets radiating
east, west, and south from a central circle, located at the top of a small hill. In 1913, the first shaft
of the Judson Mine was sunk, while the Balkan Mine began operating in 1915. With the developmen+ of these
two productive mines iIn the vicinity, a boom began in the new settlement.

The community grew rap!dly; fueled by the success of the mines and also encouraged by the Nevada Land
Company. This company, which owned much of the platted land, promoted quick development of the area and the
sale of lots through advertising and boosterism. In 1913, the growing settlement was given a post office
named Alpha, one of several Michigan post offices given the name of a letter from the Greek alphabet. Soon
the need for organized government was felt. A village charter was drawn up and the institution of village
government overwhelmingly ratified in a general election in August of 1914,

Development of the settlement reached its peak the same year that the village was incorporated. During
that year, the Nevada Land Company donated to the village and township school system a four-and-one-half-
acre parcel of land on which the Alpha Village Hall, the water tower (part of the village water system), and
+he George F. Porter Public Schoo! were constructed. In 1914, also, a bank was organized, many stores and
businesses were established, electric lights were installed, and a hotel opened. Six passenger trains a day
serviced the bustling village, along the Chicago and Northwestern line which had been extended in 1882
through +he area that became Alpha. The future looked bright, indeed.

However, although initial growth was rapid, the boom was short livede By the early 1930s, all mining
activity had ceased in the area. Passenger trains and bus service stopped. Since the closing of +he mines,
Alpha has become primarily a residential community, with few business establishments. Its citizens rely on
Crystal Falls, six miles to the northeast, not only for employment, but for goods and services. Alpha's
cycle of boom and decline provides a classic example of the historic pattern followed by many such mining
commun i+ies, and 1s thus expressive of the rich mining-related history of Iron County.
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HISTORICAL OVERVIEW OF VILLAGE OF AMASA

The historical development of the village of Amasa, |lke the development of most of Iron County, 1s
Iinked to the dlscovery of lron ore In the area, and the subsequent mining actlvitles., Ore was unearthed
along the Hemlock Rlver In Hematlite Townshlp In 1888 by Matthew Gibson and hls son Thoburn, The Hemlock
Mining Company, a Plckands, Mather Company subsldlary, acqulired property just west of the village slite In
1889, It began full mining operations In 1890, after the completion of a rallroad spur by the Palnt River
Rallway Company connected the mine site to Crystal Falls, sixteen mlles to the south, The settlement which
arose around the minlng operations was known first as "Hemlock," but tn 1892 the name was changed to Amasa,
after Amasa Stone Mather, son of Samue! Mather of the Plckands, Mather Company,

The tntttal growth of Amasa was rapid, spurred by the opening of flve addltlonal mines 1n the area by
the early twentleth century, and also by the development of a thrlving lumber !ndustry engaged In har-
vesting the local stands of whlte plnes. In the flrst half of the 189%0s, a townshlp hall, a boarding house,
the traln depot, and several commerclal structures were bullt, A post offlce was established In 1891, The
flre department was organlzed In 1901, and gasollne street lamps were Instal led that same year., By 1905,
the town boasted a water system.

Development of Amasa contlnued at a steady pace untlil the 1920s and 1930s, when the ore mlning Industry
gradual ly decltned, The Warner Mine, the last to operate In the area, closed In 1940; Amasa has changed
I1ttle since then., However, the lumber Indusiry dld not wane after the virgin plne stands were Inltlally
harvested, Large lumber companles began practlicing modern forestry technlques, such as reseeding and selec-
tlve harvesting, to lnsure the contlnued future of lumbering in the area, A school of forestry establlshed
at the Amasa High School In 1932 reflects the growlng Interest at this tlme ln encouraging the wise use of
tImber from Amasa's forests, Today the lumber tndustry, whlle not encouraging growth, contlnues to sustaln
Amasa and the Amerlcan Can Company and the Plne Rlver Lumber Company are the major employers,
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